
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 23, 2020 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE: Wednesday, March 25, 2020, Board Meeting

This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 25, 2020, at 5:45 pm in the
Board Room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa). If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323-6535 (w) or 707-3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

8. Resolution 03-20-03 – Approval of Scraper Pan Purchase for Metro Park East
Landfill - Action for Approval
The Scraper Pan is a scheduled budgeted replacement. It will be used for hauling
approximately 50 loads of dirt daily and will have a larger capacity than the two current
Scraper Pans at MPE. Both existing units will be evaluated and will be kept as back up
or sold. Staff recommends approval.

9. Resolution 03-20-04 – Approval of Excavator Purchase for Metro Park East
Landfill - Action for Approval
The Excavator is a scheduled budgeted replacement. The 2014 324 ELH2 will be used
as a spare and the 2003 Link-belt LX will be relocated to MPW. The Excavator will be
used in the liquid disposal program to process liquids prior to disposal. Staff
recommends approval.

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

10. Resolution 03-20-05 – Consider for Approval Resolution Providing for Entering
into a Loan Agreement and Issuing Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Notes –
Action Item
This resolution is the final step in the process for issuance of the Solid Waste Disposal
Revenue Notes in a principal amount not to exceed $33,000,000 for the purposes of
financing the construction and equipping of a material recovery facility, including related
improvements, funding a debt service fund, if necessary, refunding the outstanding
balance of the Authority’s Taxable Revenue Note (Grimes Transfer Station Project) and
paying costs of issuance. The Authority has previously held a hearing and all Members
have approved a resolution providing for the issuance of the notes. Staff recommends
approval.

Page 1 of 36



Board of Directors 
2020 Calendar Year 

Mark Holm 
Chair 

Ron Pogge 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Wes Enos 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

Dean Cooper 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Ron Pogge 
Urbandale 

Steve Gaer 
West Des Moines 

Threase Harms 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 
March 25, 2020 

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 9

5. Consideration of Minutes February 19, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board 
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 03-20-01– Consideration of January 2020, Financial Statements –
Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 03-20-02 – Consideration of February 2020, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

8. Resolution 03-20-03 – Approval of Scraper Pan Purchase for Metro Park East 
Landfill – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 03-20-04 – Approval of Excavator Purchase for Metro Park East 
Landfill – Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Item 10 

10. Resolution 03-20-05 – Consider for Approval Resolution Providing for Entering
into a Loan Agreement and Issuing Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Notes –
Action Item

11. Director’s Report

12. Chair’s Report

13. General Board Discussion and Other Business

14. Correspondence

15. Adjournment

Page 2 of 36



Page 2 of 2 

MWA Board Meeting 
March 25, 2020 

April Executive/Finance Meeting: April 1, 2020, MWA Central Office, 300 E. 
Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 

April Board Meeting: April 15, 2020, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust Street, 
Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 

Page 3 of 36



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

February 19, 2020 Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Mark Holm, chair,
called the February 19, 2020, Metro Waste Authority board meeting to order at 5:45 pm.
A quorum was present.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona
Mark Holm, Ankeny
John Edwards, Clive
Joe Gatto, Des Moines
David Gisch, Grimes
Tom Cope, Johnston
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville
Ed Kuhl, Norwalk
Dean Cooper, Pleasant Hill
Rob Sarchet, Polk City
Gerald Lane, Runnells
Ron Pogge, Urbandale
Bret Hodne, West Des Moines
Michael Loffredo, Windsor Heights

2. Approval of Regular Agenda
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve the February 19, 2020, board meeting
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

3. Public Forum
There were no requests to address the Board.
______________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 7
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve the consent agenda, items 4 through
7. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

5. Consideration of Minutes of January 22, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 02-20-01 - Consideration of December 2019, Financial Statements –
Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 02-20-02 - Consideration of January 2020, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

Page 4 of 36



END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval - Items 8 through 11 

8. Resolution 02-20-03 - Approval of Environmental Management System Environmental 
Policy - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 02-20-03. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote.
Michael McCoy, executive director, reported Metro Waste Authority (MWA) is required 
to have an environmental policy, as an Environmental Management System (EMS) 
participant. EMS is a voluntary program through the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources (IDNR) that encourages proactive management of environmental impacts. 
MWA’s environmental policy focuses on reducing pollution and diverting items from the 
landfill.

9. Resolution 02-20-04 - Approval of Final Completion and Closeout of Project P-57, 
Constructed Wetlands at Metro Park East Landfill - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 02-20-04. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote.
Art Kern, compliance coordinator, reported Metro Park East Landfill’s constructed 
wetlands has been completed under budget by $65,388.36. The new contract sum, 
including all change orders, is $983,551.64.

10. Resolution 02-20-05 - Approval of Final Completion and Closeout of Project P-58, Cell 
D South Liner at Metro Park East Landfill - Action Item
Moved by Grimes, seconded by Des Moines, to approve Resolution 02-20-05. Motion 
carried unanimously by voice vote.
Art Kern, compliance coordinator, reported Metro Park East Landfill’s Cell D South Liner 
project has been completed under budget by $636,353.60. Change order No. 1 reflects 
deductions in the amount of $136,630.60. This deduction is due to liquidated damages 
for a delay of the project timeline, as well as variance in the quantities of soil 
excavation. The total project cost, after final payment is made, will be $5,924,146.40.

11. At 5:56 pm, a public hearing was opened regarding the proposition to enter into a loan 
agreement with Polk County related to financing a material recovery facility and 
refinancing the outstanding balance of the Authority’s Taxable Revenue Note (Grimes 
Transfer Station Project) Series 2014. No oral or written comments were received in 
advance of the meeting. During the hearing, Curt Lack, chief financial officer for Mid-
America Recycling, opposed. The public hearing closed at 6:04 pm.
Resolution 02-20-06 – Expressing Intent to Enter into Material Recovery Facility Solid 
Waste Disposal Revenue Loan Agreement and Issue a Note in an Amount Not to 
Exceed $33,000,000 – Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to approve Resolution 02-20-06. Motion 
carried unanimously by voice vote.
There was no board discussion.

Page 5 of 36



12. Presentation: Central Iowa Clay Target Center – Chris Van Gorp, shooting sports and 
range coordinator, with the Iowa Department of Natural Resources
Chris Van Gorp, shooting sports and range coordinator with the Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources (IDNR), presented recent growth of trap, skeet, and sport clay 
shooting across the metro and state. Currently, there are 22 teams in a 30-mile radius of 
the Environmental Learning Center. The IDNR expressed interest in partnering with 
Metro Waste Authority.

13. Director’s Report
Michael McCoy, executive director, reported Grimes Planning and Zoning unanimously 
approved the building design and rail usage for the material recovery facility.
McCoy reported Metro Waste Authority’s landfill operator course is taking place this 
week. Chelsie Oxenford, business marketing coordinator, shared engineering firms and 
internal staff have been teaching the course. The course is currently being offered for 
MWA staff.
McCoy reported the key priorities slide is being updated and will be presented to the 
Board in March.
McCoy reported the March board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 18, 
which falls during spring break. McCoy will follow-up to determine if the March meeting 
needs to be adjusted.
McCoy reported three cities outside of MWA member communities have contacted the 
agency regarding their trash and/or recycling contracts. Staff will assess feasibility of 
ongoing consultation with these communities.
The March executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E.
Locust St. Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, March 4, 2020, at 12:00
pm.
The March board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, 
Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, March 18, 2020, at 5:45 pm.

14. Chair’s Report
No report.

15. General Board Discussion and Other Business
No report.

16. Adjournment
Meeting adjourned at 6:35 pm.

__________________________________ _____________________________ 
  Michael McCoy, Executive Director   Mark E. Holm, Chair 

Page 6 of 36



Page 7 of 36



Page 8 of 36



Page 9 of 36



Page 10 of 36



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

March 25, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 08 

ITEM:  
Approval of Scraper Pan Purchase for Metro Park East (MPE) Landfill. 

SUMMARY:  
Three bids were received for the replacement of two aging Scraper Pans at MPE: 

• Titan Machinery: 2020 K-TEC 1228 and Hitch – $170,475.00
• Ziegler Cat: 2020 MT23 Mobile Track Solutions – $172,316.62
• Mid Country Machinery: 2019 K-TEC and Hitch – $176,500.00

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The Scraper Pan will be used for hauling approximately 50 loads of dirt daily and will have a 
larger capacity than the two current Scraper Pans at MPE. Both existing units will be evaluated 
and will be kept as back up or sold. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposal from Titan Machinery of $170,475.00 for the 2020 
K-TEC 1228 Scraper Pan and Hitch.

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The Scraper Pan is a budgeted item for FY19/20. The Titian Machinery proposal of $170,475.00 
is below the budgeted amount of $180,765. The funds are available in the Capital Equipment 
Fund.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A- Titan Machinery Proposal 
Attachment B- Ziegler Cat Proposal 
Attachment C- Mid Country Machinery Proposal 

CONTACT: 
Brian Krueger, Interim Disposal Operations Manager, 515.333.4447 

Page 11 of 36



Page 12 of 36



Page 13 of 36



Page 14 of 36



Page 15 of 36



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

March 25, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 09 

ITEM:  
Approval of Excavator Purchase for Metro Park East (MPE) Landfill. 

SUMMARY:  
Two bids were received for the replacement of the current Excavator, a 2014 324 ELH2: 

• Titan Machinery: 2020 Case CX250D Excavator – $292,519.40
• Ziegler Cat-Caterpillar Model: 330 Excavator – $442,745.88

Titan Machinery is the recommended vendor with Sourcewell/NJPA pricing in the amount of 
$292,519.40. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The Excavator is a scheduled budgeted replacement. The 2014 324 ELH2 will be used as a 
spare and the 2003 Link-belt LX will be relocated to MPW.   

The Excavator will be used in the liquid disposal program to process liquids prior to disposal. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposal from Titan Machinery of $292,519.40 for the 2020 
Case CX250D Excavator. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The Excavator is a budgeted item in the FY19/20 budget. The Sourcewell/NJPA bid price of 
$292,519.40 is below the budgeted amount of $501,502. The funds are available in the Capital 
Equipment Fund.     

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A- Titan Machinery Proposal 
Attachment B- Ziegler Cat Proposal 

CONTACT: 
Brian Krueger, Interim Disposal Operations Manager, 515.333.4447 

Page 16 of 36



Page 17 of 36



Page 18 of 36



Page 19 of 36



Page 20 of 36



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

March 25, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 10 

ITEM:  
Consider for approval resolution providing for entering into a loan agreement and issuing Solid 
Waste Disposal Revenue Notes. 

SUMMARY: 
Provides for entering into a loan agreement and issuing Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Notes in 
a principal amount not to exceed $33,000,000 for the purposes of financing the construction and 
equipping of a material recovery facility, including related improvements, funding a debt service 
fund, if necessary, refunding the outstanding balance of the Authority’s Taxable Revenue Note 
(Grimes Transfer Station Project) and paying costs of issuance. 

Because final financing terms have not been determined, the Board will be asked to adopt the 
resolution with the form of the loan agreement and issue the revenue notes as to form, at such 
time and with such final terms and provisions as the Chairperson and staff, with the assistance 
of the Authority’s municipal advisor and bond counsel, determine to be in the best interest of the 
Authority. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
This resolution is the final step in the process for issuance of the Solid Waste Disposal Revenue 
Notes. The Authority has previously held a hearing and all Members have approved a resolution 
providing for the issuance of the notes. Due to market conditions related to COVID-19 this 
resolution provides parameters with respect to the issuance of the notes, final terms and 
conditions pursuant to which the notes will be issued. The form of the Loan Agreement also 
provides for current provisions and general term covenants related to the issuance. This 
resolution provides flexibility and parameters for the Authority to issue the notes in the manner 
most advantageous without the need for additional board action. 

The loan agreement is proposed to be entered into pursuant to authority contained in Chapters 
28F and 384 of the Code of Iowa and will be payable solely and only from the net revenues of 
the Authority. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the approval of the resolution to enter into a loan agreement and issue the 
revenue notes.  

CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, Executive Director, 515.323.6535 

Page 21 of 36



MINUTES TO AUTHORIZE 
ENTERING INTO A LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND ISSUE SOLID 
WASTE REVENUE NOTES 
 
438781-1   

Des Moines, Iowa 

March 25, 2020 

The Board of Directors of the Des Moines Metropolitan Area Solid Waste 
Agency, d/b/a Metro Waste Authority met on March 25, 2020, at ________ o’clock p.m., 
at the Authority Administrative Offices, 300 East Locust Street, Des Moines, Iowa. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, and the roll was called showing 
the following Directors present and absent: 

Present:  _______________________________________________ 

Absent:  ___________________________. 

After due consideration and discussion, Director ____________________ 
introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption, seconded by Director 
__________________.  The Chairman put the question upon the adoption of said 
resolution, and the roll being called, the following Directors voted: 

Ayes:  _______________________________________________ 

Nays: _____________________________. 

Whereupon, the Chairman declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set 
out. 

Page 22 of 36



 

* * * * 

At the conclusion of the meeting, and upon motion and vote, the Board adjourned. 

  
Chairman, Board of Directors 

Attest: 

  
Executive Director 

Page 23 of 36



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

Resolution authorizing and approving a Loan Agreement and providing 
for the sale and issuance of a not to exceed $33,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount of Solid Waste Revenue Capital Loan Notes in one or 
more series and securing the payment of the same 
 
WHEREAS, the Des Moines Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency d/b/a Metro 

Waste Authority (the “Authority”) has heretofore proposed to enter into a Loan 
Agreement dated June 4, 2020, (the “Loan Agreement”) in a principal amount not to 
exceed $33,000,000 pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 28F and 384 of the Code of 
Iowa, for the purpose of financing the construction and equipping of a material recovery 
facility, including related improvements, funding a debt service fund, if necessary, 
refunding the outstanding balance of the Authority’s Taxable Revenue Note (Grimes 
Transfer Station Project), Series 2014 and paying costs of issuance; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, the Board has 

heretofore proposed to contract indebtedness and enter into a loan agreement in the 
principal amount of not to exceed $33,000,000 for the purposes set forth above, and the 
Board has previously conducted a public hearing thereon; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to sell the Notes (defined herein) to 
either (i) Polk County, Iowa, a body politic of the State of Iowa, (ii) a financial institution 
to be determined, or (iii) the federal government of the United States of America (the 
“Purchaser”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to issue its Solid Waste Revenue 
Capital Loan Notes (the “Notes”), in one or more series, of which the interest on one or 
more series may be subject to federal income taxation to the owners thereof (the “Taxable 
Notes”), and of which the interest on one or more series may be exempt from federal 
income taxation to the owners thereof (the “Tax-Exempt Notes”); and  

WHEREAS, each of the Members of the Authority have approved a resolution 
providing for the issuance of the Notes;  

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Board of Directors of the Metro 
Waste Authority, as follows: 

Section 1. The Authority, acting through the Board, shall enter into the Loan 
Agreement with a Purchaser, in substantially the form as has been placed on file with the 
Board but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as shall be in 
the best financial interest of the Authority as determined by staff of the Authority with 
imput from the Authority’s municipal advisor and counsel to the Authority, providing for 
a loan to the Authority in the aggregate principal amount of  not to exceed $33,000,000, 
for the purpose or purposes set forth in the preamble hereof. 

Page 24 of 36



The Chairman and Executive Director are authorized and directed to sign the 
Loan Agreement on behalf of the Authority, and the form of the Loan Agreement is 
hereby approved. 

Section 2. The Notes are authorized to be sold to a Purchaser and the form of 
agreement of sale of the Notes to a Purchaser is hereby approved with such changes, 
modifications, additions and deletions therein as shall be in the best financial interest of 
the Authority as determined by staff of the Authority with imput from the Authority’s 
municipal advisor and counsel to the Authority; and the Chairman and the Executive 
Director are hereby authorized to execute the Loan Agreement for and on behalf of the 
Authority. 

Section 3. The Notes are hereby authorized to be issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of not to exceed $33,000,000 with the principal amount of each Note to 
be determined by the Chairman and Executive Director, shall be dated as of the date of 
their delivery to the Purchaser, and shall be payable as to both principal and interest in 
the manner hereinafter specified. 

The Executive Director is hereby designated as the Registrar and Paying Agent 
for the Note and may be hereinafter referred to as the “Registrar” or the “Paying Agent.” 

Principal and interest of the Note shall be payable in monthly installments 
commencing July 1, 2020, with all remaining outstanding principal and interest due no 
later than June 1, 2040 (the “Maturity Date”). 

The Tax-Exempt Notes shall bear interest at a true interest cost of not to exceed 
5% per annum.  The Taxable Notes shall bear interest at a true interest cost of not to 
exceed 5% per annum.  Interest shall be calculated on the basis of actual/360-day year. 

Payment of both principal of and interest on the Notes shall be made to the 
registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Authority and shall be paid by 
check or draft mailed to the registered owner at the address shown on such registration 
books; provided, however, that the final installment of principal and interest shall be 
payable only upon presentation and surrender of the Notes by the Purchaser. 

The Authority reserves the right to prepay principal of the Notes in whole or in 
part as shall be determined and set forth in the Loan Agreement and the Notes. 

The Notes shall be executed on behalf of the Authority with the official manual or 
facsimile signature of the Chairman and attested with the official manual or facsimile 
signature of the Executive Director and shall be  fully registered notes without interest 
coupons.  In case any officer whose signature or the facsimile of whose signature appears 
on the Note shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Note, such signature 
or such facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the 
same as if such officer had remained in office until delivery. 

Neither the Notes nor the Loan Agreement shall be payable in any manner by 
taxation, but the Notes and any obligations issued by the Authority from time to time 

Page 25 of 36



ranking on a parity therewith under the terms of this resolution (the “Parity Obligations”) 
shall be payable both as to principal and interest from the net revenues, funds and 
accounts of the Authority available and pledged as set forth in the Loan Agreement. 

The Notes shall not be an obligation of any of the members of the Authority (the 
“Members”) and shall not be payable from or constitute a lien against the general fund of 
any of the Members.  None of the Members shall be in any manner liable by reason of the 
failure of the funds of the Authority to be sufficient for the payment in whole or in part of 
the Notes, and the interest thereon. 

The Notes shall be fully registered as to principal and interest in the name of the 
owner on the registration books of the Authority kept by the Registrar, and after such 
registration, payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon shall be made only to 
the registered owner, its legal representatives or assigns.  The Notes shall be transferable 
only upon the registration books of the Authority upon presentation to the Registrar, 
together with either a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar or the 
assignment form thereon completed and duly executed by the registered owner or the 
duly authorized attorney for such registered owner. 

The record and identity of any owners of the Notes shall be kept confidential as 
provided by Section 22.7 of the Code of Iowa. 

Section 4. The Notes shall be in substantially the following form: 

Page 26 of 36



(Form of Note) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF IOWA 

COUNTY OF POLK 
DES MOINES METROPOLITAN AREA SOLID WASTE AGENCY, d/b/a 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY 

[TAXABLE] SOLID WASTE CAPITAL LOAN NOTE, SERIES 2020A[B] 

 $_________ 
MATURITY DATE NOTE DATE 

June 1, 20___ June 4, 2020 

The Des Moines Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency, d/b/a Metro Waste Authority 
(the “Authority”), in the County of Polk, State of Iowa, through its Board of Directors (the 
“Board”), for value received, promises to pay in the manner hereinafter provided to 

[PURCHASER] 

or registered assigns (the “Purchaser”), the principal sum of ____________ DOLLARS, together 
with interest on the outstanding principal hereof from the date of this Note, or from the most 
recent payment date on which interest has been paid, except as the provisions hereinafter set 
forth with respect to prepayment prior to maturity may be or become applicable hereto. 

Principal and interest on this Note is payable as set forth in the Loan Agreement 
commencing on June 1, 20___, with all remaining outstanding principal and interest due on June 
1, 20____ (the “Maturity Date”).   

This Note shall bear interest at a rate of ____% per annum.  Interest will be calculated on 
the basis of an actual/360-day year. 

Both principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner appearing 
on the registration books of the Authority maintained by the Executive Director (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Registrar” or the “Paying Agent”) at the close of business on the fifteenth day 
of the month next preceding the payment date in lawful money of the United States of America 
by check or draft mailed to the registered owner at the address shown on such registration books; 
provided, however, that the final installment of principal and interest shall be payable only upon 
presentation and surrender of this Note to the Paying Agent. 

This Note is subject to prepayment by the Borrower on June 1, 20___, or any date 
thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest thereon, upon 10 business days’ written notice. 

This Note is issued by the Authority to evidence its obligation under a certain Loan 
Agreement dated June 4, 2020, (the “Loan Agreement”) by and among the Authority and Polk 
County, Iowa , for the purpose of the construction and equipping of a material recovery facility, 

Page 27 of 36



including related improvements, funding a debt service fund, if necessary, refunding the 
outstanding balance of the Authority’s Taxable Revenue Note (Grimes Transfer Station Project), 
Series 2014 and paying costs of issuance of this Note;. 

This Note is issued in accordance with and in strict compliance with the provisions of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement pursuant to which the Authority was created and to the 
Authority’s Policy Manual, and in conformity with a resolution of the Board of the Authority 
authorizing and approving the Loan Agreement and providing for the sale and issuance of this 
Note (the “Resolution”), and reference is hereby made to the Resolution and the Loan 
Agreement for a more complete statement as to the source of payment of this Note and the rights 
of the owners of this Note. 

This Note, together with any additional obligations as may be hereafter issued and 
outstanding from time to time ranking on a parity therewith as provided in the Resolution, is 
payable from the net revenues, fund and accounts as pledged therefore pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement. 

This Note is not an obligation of any of the members of the Authority (the “Members”), 
is not payable from and does not constitute a lien against the general fund of any of the 
Members, and under no circumstances shall any of the Members be in any manner liable by 
reason of the failure of the net revenues, funds or accounts of the Authority to be sufficient for 
the payment of this Note and the interest hereon. 

This Note is fully negotiable but shall be fully registered as to both principal and interest 
in the name of the owner on the books of the Authority in the office of the Registrar, after which 
no transfer shall be valid unless made on said books and then only upon presentation of this Note 
to the Registrar, together with either a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar 
or the assignment form hereon completed and duly executed by the registered owner or the duly 
authorized attorney for such registered owner. 

Principal on this is payable at the principal office of Executive Director of the Authority 
(together with its successors or assigns, the  “Registrar"), upon presentation and surrender 
hereof.  All payments on this Note shall be made in lawful money of the United States of 
America.  For so long as Polk County, Iowa, is the Registered Owner, interest shall be payable 
by wire transfer.  Otherwise, interest shall be payable by check or draft mailed to the Registered 
Owner at the registered address shown on the registration books of the Authority kept by the 
Register as of the close of business on the day next preceding any Interest Payment Date.  If the 
Registered Owner so elects, any payment due to such Registered Owner shall be made by 
electronic transfer of federal reserve funds to any account in the United States of America 
designated by such Registered Owner if such Registered Owner, at its expense, (a) so directs by 
written notice delivered to the Registrar at least ten Business Days before the date upon which 
such electronic transfer or other arrangement is to be made and (b) otherwise complies with the 
reasonable requirements of the Registrar.   

All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Note shall have the meaning ascribed 
thereto in the Loan Agreement. 

Page 28 of 36



Reference is hereby made to the Loan Agreement and to the Resolution adopted by the 
Authority on March 25, 2020 (the "Note Resolution") and to all amendments and supplements 
thereto for a description of the nature and extent of the security, the rights, duties and obligations 
of the Authority and the Authority, the terms on which this Note is issued and secured, the 
manner in which interest is computed on this Note, redemption rights, acceleration and the rights 
of the Registered Owner.  Modifications or alterations of the Loan Agreement or of any 
supplement thereto may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances permitted by the 
Loan Agreement. 

This Note and the interest thereon are special, limited obligations of the Authority 
payable solely out of the amounts paid by the Authority and other security pledged to such 
payment, including under the Related Documents.  

This Note is registered as to principal and interest and may be exchanged, and its transfer 
may be effected, only upon the books of the Authority kept for that purpose by the Registrar, by 
the Registered Owner hereof upon the surrender of this Note together with an assignment duly 
executed by the Registered Owner or by its attorney duly authorized in writing (together with 
payment by the Registered Owner to the Registrar of all charges or taxes, if any, required to be 
paid with respect to such transfer), and the Registered Owner may, to the extent permitted by 
law, sell participations in this Note; provided, however, that this Note shall always be registered 
in the name of one owner and may be transferred only in the manner and subject to the 
limitations provided in the Loan Agreement, including, without limitation, the delivery of an 
"investor letter" to the extent required under the Loan Agreement.  The Authority may deem and 
treat the person in whose name this Note shall be registered on the Register, as the absolute 
owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof and 
interest due hereon and for all other purposes. 

The Authority, the Registrar and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the registered 
owner hereof as the absolute owner for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of 
principal hereof, premium, if any, and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and the 
Authority, the Registrar and the Paying Agent shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

And It Is Hereby Certified, Recited and Declared that all acts, conditions and things 
required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have 
existed, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner, as required by 
law, and that the issuance of this Note does not exceed or violate any constitutional or statutory 
limitation or provision. 

Page 29 of 36



 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Des Moines Metropolitan Area Solid Waste Agency, 
d/b/a Metro Waste Authority, through its Board of Directors, has caused this Note to be executed 
by the Chairman of the Board and attested by the Executive Director, on June 4, 2020. 

DES MOINES METROPOLITAN AREA 
SOLID WASTE AGENCY, d/b/a METRO 
WASTE AUTHORITY 

By        (DO NOT SIGN)                                 
Chairman, Board of Directors 

Attest: 

   (DO NOT SIGN)                                     
Executive Director 

Page 30 of 36



ABBREVIATIONS 

The following abbreviations, when used in this Note, shall be construed as though they 
were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 

TEN COM - as tenants in common UTMA 
(Custodian) 

TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties As Custodian for  
JT TEN - as joint tenants with

right of survivorship and
not as tenants in common

(Minor) 
under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act 

(State) 
Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the list above. 

ASSIGNMENT 

For valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned 
assigns this Note to 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or type name and address of Assignee) 

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR 
OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE 

and does hereby irrevocably appoint ________________________________, Attorney, to 
transfer this Note on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution. 

Dated:  

Signature guaranteed: 

NOTICE:  The signature to this Assignment must 
correspond with the name of the registered owner as 
it appears on this Note in every particular, without 
alteration or enlargement or any change whatever. 

Page 31 of 36



Section 5. Each Note shall be executed as herein provided as soon after the adoption 
of this resolution as may be possible and thereupon shall be delivered to the Registrar for 
registration and delivery to the Purchaser, and all action heretofore taken in connection with the 
Loan Agreement is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects.  So long as the Note or any 
Parity Obligations are outstanding, the Authority shall continue to be operated in an efficient 
manner and at a reasonable cost as a revenue producing undertaking.  The Authority hereby 
covenants to establish, impose, adjust and provide for the collection of rates to be charged to 
customers of the Authority, to produce gross revenues at least sufficient to pay the expenses of 
operation and maintenance of the Authority (which shall include salaries, wages, cost of 
maintenance and operation, materials, supplies, insurance and all other items normally included 
under recognized accounting practices (but does not include allowances for depreciation or 
amortization in the valuation of physical property, debt service on any obligations payable or 
paid from the net revenues of the Authority, or the provision for landfill closure and post-closure 
care costs)) and comply with the covenants and provision of the Loan Agreement, and to leave a 
balance of net revenues, funds and accounts at least sufficient to pay the principal of and interest 
on the Note and any other Parity Obligations outstanding from time to time, as the same become 
due. 

The net revenues, funds and accounts of the Authority lawfully available for payment are 
hereby pledged for the purpose of paying the interest on and the principal of the Note and any 
Parity Obligations. 

Section 6. All money held in any fund or account created or to be maintained under 
the terms of this resolution shall be deposited in lawful depositories of the Authority or invested 
in accordance with Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and continuously held and 
secured as provided by the laws of the State of Iowa relating to the depositing, securing, holding 
and investing of public funds.  All interest received by the Authority as a result of investments 
under this section shall be considered to constitute gross revenues of the Authority.  

Section 7. The Authority hereby covenants and agrees with the owner or owners of 
the Note and any Parity Obligations that from time to time may be outstanding, that it will 
faithfully and punctually perform all duties with reference to the Authority required and provided 
by the Constitution and laws of the State of Iowa. 

Section 8. Upon a breach or default of a term of the Note or Parity Obligations and 
this resolution, the Purchaser and the holder or holders of any Parity Obligations shall have all 
the rights of action and remedies afforded by the common law, the Constitution and statutes of 
the State of Iowa and of the United States of America, for the enforcement of their rights 
hereunder, including but not limited to, the right to a proceeding in law or in equity by suit, 
action or mandamus to enforce and compel performance of the duties required under the terms of 
this resolution, or an action may be brought to obtain the appointment of a receiver to take 
possession of and operate the Authority and its facilities and to perform the duties required by 
this resolution. 

Section 9. Neither the Notes nor any Parity Obligations shall be entitled to priority or 
preference one over the other in the application of the net revenues, funds or accounts of the 
Authority regardless of the time or times of the issuance of the Notes or any Parity Obligations, it 

Page 32 of 36



being the intention that there shall be no priority between the Notes or any Parity Obligations, 
regardless of the fact that they may have been actually issued and delivered at different times.  
The right is hereby reserved to issue additional Parity Obligations payable from net revenues, 
funds and accounts of the Authority. 

Section 10. The Authority agrees that so long as the Notes or any Parity Obligations 
remain outstanding, it will maintain insurance for the benefit of the owners of the Notes and any 
Parity Obligations on the insurable portions of the Authority of a kind and in an amount which 
usually would be carried by private companies or municipalities engaged in a similar type of 
business.  The Authority will keep proper books of record and account, separate from all other 
records and accounts, showing the complete and correct entries of all transactions relating to the 
Authority, and the owners of the Notes or any Parity Obligations shall have the right at all 
reasonable times to inspect the Authority and all records, accounts and data of the Authority 
relating thereto. 

Section 11. The Chairman and/or the Executive Director are authorized to execute and 
deliver for and on behalf of the Authority any and all additional agreements, certificates, 
documents, opinions or other papers and perform all other acts (including without limitation the 
filing of any financing statements or any other documents to create and maintain a security 
interest on the properties and revenues pledged or assigned under the Loan Agreement, and the 
execution of all closing documents as may be required by Bond counsel and approved by counsel 
to the Authority, and the acceptance of any documentation evidencing indemnification of the 
Authority by Borrower in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby) as they may 
deem necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the intent and purposes of this 
Resolution. 

Section 12. The provisions of this resolution shall constitute a contract between the 
Authority and the owners of the Notes, and after the issuance of the Notes, no change, variation 
or alteration of any kind of the provisions of this resolution shall be made which will adversely 
affect any owners of the Note until the Note and the interest thereon shall have been paid in full. 

Section 13. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this resolution shall be 
held invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of 
the remaining provisions of this resolution. 

Section 14. All resolutions and orders or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 
of this resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 36



Section 15. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

Passed and approved March 25, 2020. 

Chairman, Board of Directors 

Attest: 

Executive Director 

Page 34 of 36



STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF POLK   SS: 
DES MOINES METROPOLITAN AREA SOLID WASTE AGENCY, 
d/b/a METRO WASTE AUTHORITY 

I, the undersigned, Executive Director of the Des Moines Metropolitan Area Solid Waste 
Agency, d/b/a Metro Waste Authority (the “Authority”), do hereby certify that I have in my 
possession or have access to the complete records of the Authority and of its Board of Directors 
and officers and that I have carefully compared the transcript hereto attached with those records 
and that the transcript hereto attached is a true, correct and complete copy of all the records in 
relation to the authorization and approval of a certain Loan Agreement and the issuance of 
$33,000,000 Solid Waste Revenue Notes, in one or more series, evidencing the obligation of the 
Authority under the Loan Agreement and that the transcript hereto attached contains a true, 
correct and complete statement of all the measures adopted and proceedings, acts and things had, 
done and performed up to the present time with respect thereto. 

I further certify that no appeal has been taken to the District Court from the decision of 
the Board of Directors to enter into the Loan Agreement or to issue the Note. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 

Executive Director 

Page 35 of 36



March 22, 2020 

Michael McCoy 
Metro Waste Authority 
300 East Locust Street, Suite 100 
Des Moines, Iowa   50309 

Re: $33,000,000 Loan Agreement - Solid Waste Revenue Notes in one or more series 
Our File Number: 438781-1 

Dear Michael: 

We have prepared and enclose the necessary proceedings to be used at the March 25, 2020, 
Board meeting to adopt the resolution approving the form of Loan Agreement and the Notes and 
authorizing the issuance of the Notes. 

The proceedings enclosed include the following items: 

1. Minutes of the meeting the Resolution.  The form of Note and Assignment set out in the
resolution need not be completed or executed. 

2. Certificate attesting the transcript.

As these proceedings are completed, please return one fully executed copy to our office. 

If you have any questions, please contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

David D. Grossklaus 
DDG:sv 
Enclosures 

cc: Matt Brick 
Amy Muench 
Matthew Stoffel 

Page 36 of 36


	Board Memo - pg. 1
	Agenda - pgs. 2&3
	Agenda Item 5: Minutes of February 2020 Board Meeting - pgs. 4-6
	Agenda Item 7: February Expenditures - pgs. 7-10
	Agenda Item 8: Scraper Pan Purchase - pgs. 11-15
	Agenda Item 9: Excavator Purchase - pgs. 16-20
	Agenda Item 10: Loan Agreement - pgs 21-36



